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QipyalWUIAUIAEIAU bolttech TR www.bolttech.io

In December 2019, Siam City Insurance Public Company Limited became part of bolttech Group, a leading global
insurance group under Pacific Century Group or PCG and changed its name from Siam City Insurance Public Company
Limited to FWD Insurance Public Company Limited.

Over the past 3 years, the operational strategies of FWD Insurance Public Company Limited have been consistent with
the visions and missions of bolttech Group that focuses on bringing customer needs as a starting point for creating new
insurance products to meet the diverse needs of customers while bringing technology and digital capabilities to drive
a comprehensive operation so that stakeholders whether agents, distributors and customers themselves get more convenient,
faster and more efficient to meet the ultimate goal of creating sustainable business stability.

bolttech Group currently serves customers in more than 30 countries in North America, Asia and Europe.

For more information about bolttech, please visit www.bolttech.io
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Message from the Chairperson of the Board
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Wurmbd Ay lumsrioiu

As we reflect on the past year, we acknowledge the significant
impact of global events on the economy and people’s lives.
Despite these challenges, FWD General Insurance Thailand
has achieved impressive financial performance and growth.
Our success is a result of our steadfast commitment to
innovation, technology, and, above all, our customers.




SguU NANTU
Dear all,

vavdaululAniuut TikamsailkeyRadomwans:nudo
AsygAnLazsIavaviAumlanuIAuIe Wiv:dovindeynu
AMMakal wduuaraus:Auis Uszinalng Advarunsadu
kgauasUszaundwdSanviudiunmsiounaznmsiavlanio
ssAvagvWowal Aol ANuduSavavisilurauimnANL
ouuaghoubudtumswuunudanssu inalulad uasikiiodvdula
AsdaterndudavnisuazAduwowalduavanAlukde
&rAeylumsrioiu

'
o=

klvlunagnskanuavis Ao MsyvUutauawaafaurAnng
naubndwamlsuazmsiaulangoéiu Goansviuwanicuriuas

SuUssAuABlduWUBOSA NoMsUSUUSOWANAURNTaE sn1@n
uowaaAurARligdsaaulandgnivssAs wiauthiaus
udanssunaanaurilke 910 mstilduanduAuAsavlnda
AJUAAU stuumsavn:zligudiksumsiaunivdds=inAlng
(Thailand Pass) &1ksulinniaviRe) Goylreadwsioldlikau
US¥n v1nAI1 200,000 AsusssUMeTus:g:al 6 [Gau s
Usuusvlasvasvwanauunulunannaurinmsus=Aungsanin
gvAualkadowailsuindu msendananfaurinmsus:Au
TogUaIKaduyARalauiliasvwarmls waWeuWanAauritky
Adn3

ISWUSas1d uMsdagnsusssuligoiulddromsijoidu
AanAdugugnaivy MsWUEavMY WA La:usAISh
daapdovluauAdnumakIvuaLanA1 SOUALAISWIUNTIKD

AxUbuGIO2auIndvdu

anRsoliumsddussianadvwamls MikiRusIWams
ddumuvavisidnnaaialagsiu oisidsnsidumsvianu
10as 51% WatfisuAunaan 89% uazisueaokiviuusen
UszauAsliAsioRasonamlsanus:aunsladanaauauav
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As we reflect on the past year, we acknowledge the
significant impact of global events on the economy and
people’s lives. Despite these challenges, FWD General
Insurance Thailand has achieved impressive financial
performance and growth. Our success is a result of our
steadfast commitment to innovation, technology, and,

above all, our customers.

One of our key initiatives was to ensure that our product
offerings were aligned with our goals for profitable and
sustainable growth. To achieve this, our Underwriting
Team took proactive actions, including reengineering
existing products, eliminating products that would not
yield an adequate profit horizon, and delivering innovative
product solutions. Examples of these include introducing
COVID Inbound Travel protection, which was embedded
in the Thailand Pass registration system and generated
revenue of more than 200,000 policies within 6 months,
changing the commission structure on Motor Compulsory
to make it profitable, stopping loss-making PA products,

and shifting to new products to improve performance.

We further advanced our renewal ratio through our
customer-centric focus, aligning customers’ expectations
with our channels, product, and service capabilities,

which included digitalisation.

Our focus on profitable business demonstrated that we
outperformed the market, with an average loss ratio of
51% compared to a market loss ratio of 89%. We were
one of the few underwriters who were able to generate
profit from our creative COVID Travel product, addressing

the protection needs of our customers during the pandemic.
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sjvtdunagnsiumswasunwaanurinmelduuddAamsidau
Usznauuwunvdi§asu (Modular Product) uazldladd
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adwuusaisisgndavArdulkunaunu 1s1lasunzluuAdIY
Wowalua:ANUKAWUYDLaNAIKSD Net Promoter Score
(NPS) tus=aulaatau sutlluwamnAnuaiSalumsvergadu
soudaAulsoweiuiandt 550 uKvLazpEausand 500 LKL
ous:nauludrsAugusSMsyaRMmILNUSKLNESDEISURD 40 UKD
uazAUGUSMSTLMIUNUTIKUNEFUSANI 150 UKD 15114
UsuUsvs:uuuovIsIWalAUSMSASIQISI LA DULEA AIUWENEN
AvkuatkablluwevaruktvuovnagnsitiuanAndu
Augnav uazllunagnsmswouuwaonuriyavis oAU
aUISaMYAISLYLTULLAADUAUDVAIIUADYAISUDVINM

ANWWaguulavciog Atiadud uaavlkiRuivAugodun
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msWwuvgemsLaulaludrusunauavusdn 1S1UNURD:
YENSSWDUMDUNUINUTURDMATILINUYBVIWAUUFITUSAUTI
wazdunuduluaarainiinudedsieydrudsAuSuIATe
Sanviuwusiasduth 4-5 stewalWuANLUTVUASOIRAU
1n$918NVSSADUDVIST

Emphasising selective underwriting strategy through
modular products, we introduced Motor Voluntary products
using GLM in order to determine the most accurate
pricing based on various factors including claims history,
driver behaviour, and vehicle information, to ensure

profitability while maintaining customer satisfaction.

At the IT Risk Management and Supervision (ITRMS)
exercise carried out in 2021 under the supervision of the
Office Insurance Commission (OIC), we were recognised
with a bronze rating. This is a proof point of our discipline

and commitment to achieve effective governance.

Our claims service saw a remarkable improvement in Net
Promoter Scores (NPS). This is due to our successful
partnership expansion with over 550 hospitals and 500
garages which 40 authorised European dealer workshops
as well as more than 150 non-European Dealer workshops.
We have streamlined our claims processing system to
provide fast and excellent service to our customers. All
these efforts are a part of our customer-centric and
product strategy by enhancing our competitive segments

and meeting our customers’ needs.

These milestones demonstrate our unwavering commitment
to provide the best possible solutions and services to our

customers while prioritising their security and protection.

Looking ahead, our strategy will focus on several key
elements. Firstly, on the scale side, we plan to expand
our agency force by persuading FWD Life agents as well
as acquiring market agents who have strong expertise in
Gl business. We will diversify our partnerships from
attracting more 4-5 premier partners to further strengthen

our network.
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We will shift our product mix towards higher retention
and better renewal products such as Property and Motor.
As we foresee tourism recovery and resilience after
COVID-19, we also seize this opportunity by providing
Travel products embedded with both domestic and
international tour packages. Our modular product
approach will continue to be a cornerstone of our efforts
to increase profitability and deliver exceptional value to

our customers.

To elevate customer experiences, we will invest in
advancing technology and digitalisation in various
customer touch points, including e-renewal, auto-renewal,
and customer portal for better after-sales services.
Ultimately, our overarching goal is to create long-term
value for all stakeholders through sustainable growth and

profitability.

We express our sincere gratitude to our customers,
shareholders, and employees for their unwavering support
and commitment to FWD General Insurance Thailand.
We remain committed to driving sustainable growth and
profitability, delivering the best possible insurance solutions,
and prioritising customer experience. We are excited
about the future and are confident that with your continued

support, we will achieve even greater heights.

uwgndu TuiAa Tnadav

Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding
Us:siunssunis/Chairperson
assumsAlLIBURUSKIS/Non-Executive Director
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Company Information

Fousuyn

Company Name

(cu SUf 31 SUNAU 2564, as of 31 December 2021)

usSun Wauualdds=Ausng 91Aa (UKIsU)
FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited

m 1

laun:ztweguusyn

Registration Number

0107555000597

b0

anmunRdodinmutkey
Head Office Address

44/1 91mssolsatisuna U 12 AUUSEANALLA LYIVRIBUID
WARKIYYII ASLINWUKIUAS 10310

44/1 Rungrojthanakul Building, 12 Floor, Ratchadaphisek Road,
Huay Kwang Sub-District, Huay Kwang District,

Bangkok 10310, Thailand

Type of Business

— Bulsd www.fwdgi.co.th
o8 Website www.fwdgi.co.th
JsziAangsam SuUs=AuduANY

General Insurance

IUdURU

Number of Shares

4,872,667 KU
4,872,667 shares

nuoan:zWWeu
Registered Capital

487,266,700 un
487,266,700 Baht

- JRCINIEC R

300UDVAU RUaTaynosIudU

Type of Shares All shares are Ordinary Shares
yamRku Kua: 100 uIn

Par Value Baht 100 per share
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Securities and Shareholding Information

38.1%

wen:zl0gukannswe

Share Registrar

12.9%

49%

daadu
MsioKu
Ratio of

Shareholders

Tuariina G3aoa lsadud loadvd adida
. Bolttech Digital Solutions Holdings Limited.

2,387,607 Ku/Shares

49%

usun luaritinAa wowawun (Inguaud) d1na
. Bolttech Management (Thailand) Limited

1,854,893 Ku/Shares

38.1%

uAnasssuadeysdalng
Thai Natural Person
630,167 KU/Shares
12.9%

usyn lowduuaddus:=aune d1aa (UKIBU)

44/1 amssolsalisuna $u 12 auussarAten
WIVRIYYIY WaKI—YII® ASLINWUKIUAS 10310
InsAwri 0-2202-9500

FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited

44/1 Rungrojthanakul Building, 12" Floor, Ratchadaphisek Road,
Huay Kwang Sub-District, Huay Kwang District, Bangkok 10310,
Tel. 0-2202-9500

Annual Report 2022
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FWD General Insurance Public

Company Limited Organization Chart
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Board of Directors

ueadu luiAa lnadav urgnadau LUIWUINg
Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding Mr. Kulvat Janvatanavit
Us:siunssunis/Chairperson assumsnlulluuskis/Non-Executive Director

p—w
-
.
u193sisu lwu:0eyayrsssu uIvaIISON avduna
Mr. Jiravat Kosapanyatham Miss Vorada Thangsurbkul

Assun1sads:/Independent Director Assun1sods:/Independent Director
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ugadwu du
Mr. Stephan Tan
assumshlulluuskis/Non-Executive Director

urgaIzaus SunsJuAs
Mr. Natdanai Indrasukhsri
assumsnlulluyuskis/Non-Executive Director

13
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mMsAawv
e USeyay101S AaUuAans awndadnan
UK1dINg1ag 9N UdgasA UssinAdksSTalusS

Uszaumsal
o WQADN18YU 2560
Chubb Limited, Chicago, IL
dhukuv: President of Combined Insurance
waADABU 2555 - waADN19U 2560
Chubb Life, Asia Pacific
dhukuv: Regional President
aalnu 2554 - wgAdDM8uU 2555
American International Group (AIG), Shanghai, Chaina
dukdv: President
asAAN 2550 - qa1AU 2554
American International Group (AIG), Singapore
dukdv: President
Uaungu 2548 - nsaniAu 2550
American International Group (AIG), Taipei, Taiwan
dukdv: President
dvKiAu 2544 - Taulgu 2548
American International Group (AIG), Southeast Asia &

Greater Chaina

dhukuv: Regional President Agency/Branch Operation
AsnNIAU 2542 - dVKIAU 2544

American International Group (AIG), Buenos Aires,

Argentina
dukuv: Agency Director

ugnsu TutAa Tnadav

Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding
Us:=s1unssunis/Chairperson
assumsiluibuiusks/Non-Executive Director

g 61U
Age 61 Years

Education
e Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, Ithaca College,
Ithaca, NY, USA

Experiences
o November 2017
Chubb Limited, Chicago, IL
Position: President of Combined Insurance
o November 2012 - November 2017
Chubb Life, Asia Pacific
Position: Regional President
October 2011 - November 2012
American International Group (AIG), Shanghai, Chaina

Position: President
July 2007 - October 2011
American International Group (AIG), Singapore

Position: President
June 2005 - July 2007
American International Group (AlG), Taipei, Taiwan

Position: President
August 2001 - June 2005
American International Group (AlG), Southeast Asia &

Greater Chaina

Position: Regional President Agency/Branch Operation
July 1999 - August 2001

American International Group (AlG), Buenos Aires,

Argentina
Position: Agency Director
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usEn ldu? Us:Audda $1Aa (UKkIsu)
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uedsisu lwu:Ueyayrsssu
Mr. Jiravat Kosapanyatham
nssuMsadas:=/Independent Director

g7 U
Age 71 Years

Education
o Master Degree of Business Administration,
National Institute of Development Administration.
o Master Degree of Law, Indiana University, U.S.A.
e Thai barrister, The Thai Bar under The Royal Patronage.
e Bachelor of Law, Chulalongkorn University.

Experiences
o April 2014 - present
FWD Life Insurance Public Company Limited.
Independent Director
e May 1992 - December 2013
ING Life Insurance Public Company Limited.
Director, Executive Vice President, Legal and Compliance

mMsAAL
e USeyeyrlnuSKISSSAD a1w1nsvans
American Graduate School of International

Management

Us:zaunisad
e USUN KannswaglulGa S1Aa (VKIBU)
AUKUD USES1UASSUAISUSKIS
e amissisaaranulng
duKkuv ASSUAS
e aarakannswgukvus:lng
duKkuv ASSUAS

urgnadlad LudwUdng
Mr. Kulvat Janvatanavit
Assun1sods:/Independent Director

21954 U
Age 54 Years

Education
e Master of Business Administration,
American Graduate School of International
Management Thunderbird Business School, USA

Experiences
o United Securities Public Company Limited.
Position: Chairperson of the executive director
o Federation of Thai Capital Market Organizations
Position: Director
e The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Position: Director

15
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AMsAnY
e USeyeyaln USKISsAD UKIINgauledul 2dWAY Lnatna
UWsvANSa UszinAlgasuui

Us:zaunisai
Uszaumsaiuinn3i 15 U duaisAdusiulasiindoAvsiAgdnu
EUYSUND LLAazMSIOUDVAANS
° yAs1AU 2565 - Upduu
bolttech Management Limited Group
dhukuv: Chief Strategy and Investment Officer
® WWVIYU 2563 - SUNAN 2564
bolttech Management Limited Group
dukuv: Chief M&A and Strategy Officer
° waun1AN 2559 - Tu1AU 2563
FWD Group Management Limited
diukuv: Chief of Staff and VP M&A Special Projects
Edirect Insure Group Limited
dhukuv: Chief Financial Officer and Member of the Board
o Other selected experiences
Citigroup Global Markets Investment Banking M&A

ugatwu du
Mr. Stephan Tan
assumsnluluuskis/Non-Executive Director

o1g40U
Age 40 Years

Education

o Master of Business Administration, Johann Wolfgang Goethe

University Frankfurt, Germany

Experiences
+15 years M&A experience in Investment Banking and
Corporate Finance:
e January 2022 - present
bolttech Management Limited Group
Position: Chief Strategy and Investment Officer
e April 2020 - present
bolttech Management Limited Group
Chief M&A and Strategy officer
e May 2016 - March 2020
FWD Group Management Limited.
Chief of Staff and Vice President M&A Special Projects
Edirect Insure Group Limited.
Chief Financial Officer and Member of the Board
e Other selected experiences
Citigroup Global Markets. Investment Banking M&A
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USeyayrln a1w1usSKIsssAD UKIINends

Southern New Hampshire Us:inAaksgatusm
Director Certification Program (DCP) 92/2007
Advanced Audit Committee Program (AACP) 16/2014

Uszaumsad

U 2560 - Upauu

Triton Holding Plc.

AuKkuL: Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
U 2557 - U 2561

Siam City Insurance Plc.

@uKkuL: Director and Executive Committee

The Post Publishing Plc.

dhukuv: Independent Director, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee,

And Compensation Committee,

U 2546 - U 2557

Siam City Insurance Plc.

duKkuv: Chief Executive Officer and President

Road Accident Victims Protection Company Limited
dhukuv: Director

U 2546 - U 2557

Siam City Insurance Plc.

duKkuL: President & CEO

U 2553 - U 2554

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)

cihukuv: Director, Executive Committee & Chairman of the
Relations Activity Committee, Chairman

U 2544 - U 2554

Thai General Insurance Association

AuKkuL: Vice President

U 2550 - U 2553

Thai General Insurance Association

@UKkUY: Chairman of the Board of Directors

U 2549 - U 2553

T.I.I. Company Limited (Thailand Insurance Institute)
AuKkuL: Director and Executive Director

Annual Report 2022

uIgITQUY BUNSHUAS
Mr. Natdanai Indrasukhsri
assumsnlulluuskis/Non-Executive Director

21969 U
Age 69 Years

Education
e Master Degree in Business Administration,
Southern New Hampshire University, USA
e Director Certification Program (DCP) 92/2007
Advanced Audit Committee Program (AACP) 16/2014

Experiences
e 2017 - Present
Triton Holding Plc.
Position: Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2014 - 2018
Siam City Insurance Plc.

Position: Director and Executive Committee
The Post Publishing Plc.

Position: Independent Director, Audit Committee, Nomination

Committee,

And Compensation Committee,
2003 - 2014

Siam City Insurance Plc.

Position: Chief Executive Officer and President
Road Accident Victims Protection Company Limited
Position: Director

e 2003 - 2014

Siam City Insurance Plc.

Position: President & CEO

2010 - 2011

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)

Position: Director, Executive Committee & Chairman of the

Relations Activity Committee, Chairman
2001 - 2011
Thai General Insurance Association

Position: Vice President
2007 - 2010
Thai General Insurance Association

Position: Chairman of the Board of Directors
2006 - 2010
T.L.I. Company Limited (Thailand Insurance Institute)

Position: Director and Executive Director
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MsAAw

MBA, Kenan -Flagler Business School,
The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, U.S.A.
USeyay103S MISIBULLAzNISUSKISSSAD UK1INE1AgsSSUAAns

Us:zaunisai

asAAN 2564 - Upauu

usyn wanbd lon duwin $1Aa (UKIBU)

ASSUAISIAS: ASSUAISASIDADU ASSUAISUSKISAUIZED
Us=51UnSSUANSASSKILLATWISEUTWAODULINU

aa1Au 2563 - Unauu

USyn LWAauuascd Us:Audda 31Aa (UK1su)assuAsadas:
ASSUATSUSKISAYIUIAEY ASSUANSOSIDEDU

waun1AN 2563 - Unauu

uSYn wunta uaddaoaa g WD
AUaIMYAISBUSES:

sux1AN 2562 - Usauu

usSy¥n Lwauuardds=Auny 3na (UK1su)
ASSUMNSAS:LA:NSSUNISASIDADU

uAS1IAN - AUYIYU 2563

USyn LWauuascd Us:Audda 31Aa (UK1su)assuAsadas:
Aug18U 2562 - wuNIAU 2563

usdn Tng Boaidn uas sear adon $1A0 UssstuBKGIRUSKIS
waun1AN 2564 - UpdUU AssuNSaas:

Aug18uU 2561 - LWVIYU 2562

usenkannswg sunmslngwidisgduazpldsd wus 91Aa
AsSsUMS

AUAWUS 2561 - waun1Au 2563

suiAmsinewieiyd 31Aa (UKIsU)
AfUEASSUAISMSWISEUNSUUSEAUANY

WW8U 2557 - WUAIAN 2562

suiAmsingwieiyd 51Aa (UKIsU)
ARUEASSUAISABVNUANSDVIZEVTW
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uva1Isa1 avduna
Ms. Vorada Thangsurbkul
AssuN1sads:/Independent Director

o1y 52U
Age 52 Years

Education
e MBA, Kenan -Flagler Business School,
The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, U.S.A.
e Bachelor degree, Finance and Business Administration,
Thammasat University

Experiences
e July 2022- present
Advice IT infinite PLC
Independent Director, Risk Management Committee,
Audit Committee, Chairperson of NRC
e October 2020 - present
FWD Life Insurance Public Company Limited.
Independent Director, Risk management Committee,
Audit Committee
May 2018 - present
Sentinel Capital Asia PTE.
Independent Financial Advisor

December 2019 - present
Siam City Insurance Public Company Limited
Independent Director and Audit Committee

January - September 2020

FWD Life Insurance Public Company Limited.
Independent Director

September 2019 - May 2020

Thai Vietjet Air Joint Stock Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer

May 2022 - present

Independent Director

September 2018 - April 2019

SCB -Julius Baer Securities Company Limited.

Director
February 2018 - May 2020
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited.

Underwriting committee
April 2014 - May 2019
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited.

Provident Fund Committee Member
April 2014 - April 2017
SCB Securities Company Limited

Director and Chairperson of the Audit Committee
July 2011 - May 2019
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited.

First Executive Vice President, Head of Investment Banking
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AU:ASSUAISYQUDY
Board Committees

walkDuTuaukanmsiAuquafomsiduavdrinviuAuassuAsAAULa:dvIasuAIsUs:naussARUS:AUAY (AUA.)
AfUEASSUMSUSIN3LIATUATATMSIadvAIASSUASYaED83IUIU 4 Afu: TauA

In order to be in line with the Good Corporate Governance Guideline of the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC),
the Board of Directors had a resolution to establish 4 sub-committees of the Board as follows:

1. AUASSNANISOSIDdDOU
(Audit Committee)

AtuzAssUAISUSENIGLaLAavYUAAA 4 Mu WAISLAILKUYASSUNISASIDADU (0T

The Board has appointed 4 persons as members of the Audit Committee as follows:

drau/No. o — ana /Name - Surname diunuv/Position

1 uedsisu luy:=Usyayrsssu UsStS1UAUEASSUANSAOSIDADU
Mr. Jiravat Kosapanyatham Chairperson of Audit Committee
2 u1vE1ISaN ﬁof—iuqa ASSUNISOSIDADU
Miss Vorada Thangsurbkul Member of Audit Committee
3 ugaugaue dunsquAs ASSUMSOSIDADU
Mr. Natdanai Indrasukhsri Member of Audit Committee
4 uoLELIUNS audig=na l@UIUAISATUEASSUNISASIDADU
Mrs. Saengchan Tantiyagul Secretary of Audit Committee

2. nm:nssumsassmua:f‘i'mund'mauunu
(Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

AfUEASSUMSUSENIAUGLAvUAAA 4 MU disvdukUvASSUAS Goi

The Board has appointed 4 persons as members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as follows:

drdu/No. G0 — ana /Name - Surname diukuv/Position

1 wedsisu luy:layayrsssu JsssiumgusASsUMISassKillasiKkuamaaunu
Mr. Jiravat Kosapanyatham Chairperson of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

2 ungadgaue dunsquAs ASsSUNISAsSKILlazfikuaAICdULNU

Mr. Natdanai Indrasukhsri Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3 uvaDIsa ﬁDﬁUf]a ASsUAISAssSKIllazAIKuaAIadULLNU

Miss Vorada Thangsurbkul Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4 uvADJUISU dBunsnyd [@UIUAISARUEASSUAISASSKILLA:IKUQAIadULLINU

Miss Sumarin Intharak Secretary of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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3. AU:ASSUAISUSKISAIINLAYYD
(Risk Management Committee)

AtuzAssumMsusEnldudvavyana 5 mu wdisvchukuvassuns aod

The Board has appointed 5 persons as members of the Risk Management Committee as follows:

drau/No. 8o — ana /Name - Surname

1 wesu luiAa Tnadav
Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding

2 uvanunsau widuns
Miss Chantarat Pao-In

3 u1ggsde ddasAvAING
Mr. Surachai Wichitkhongkhakul

4 u1gdNg WIAaUI0a
Mr. Wit Maschamadol

5 u1gsuUIS YIuNS
Mr. Thanawut Choojan

4. AU:ASSUAISAISAVNU
(Investment Committee)

daukuv/Position

US:51UARUENSSUATISUSKISDAAISADIULEED
Chairperson of Risk Management Committee

ASSUMSUSKISDOMSAULEED
Member of Risk Management Committee

ASSUAISUSKISDAAISAULEYD
Member of Risk Management Committee

ASSUMSUSKISDOMSAULELD
Member of Risk Management Committee

ASSUAISUSKISIANISAYILLEED

Member of Risk Management Committee
l@UIYAISATUEASSUNISUSKISDANISADIULEYD
Secretary of Risk Management Committee

AfUzASSUMSUSENIAudLAvyAAa 3 Mu WidsedkUvASSUMS AV

The Board has appointed 3 persons as members of the Investment Committee as follows:

1 wetA3u TuiAa Tnadav
Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding

2 ungdsde 3dasAvAIna
Mr. Surachai Wichitkhongkhakul

3 uvaYunsad wWiduns
Miss Chantarat Pao-In

20

drxdu/No. o - ana /Name - Surname diukuv/Position

Usts1unguzASSUAISWIISEUIN1Savnu
Chairperson of Investment Committee

ﬂSSUﬂ'lSVTID']SfU'm'lsa\)r]U
Member of Investment Committee

ASSUAISWDISEUINISAvNU

Member of Investment Committee
l@avIUNISATUEASSUAISWDISEUINISavNU
Secretary of Investment Committee
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sw\numsi'iaﬁ_uua\)nssumsu§6n
Shares Held by the Board of Directors

o - ana diukuv
Name - Surname Position

1 wetAsu TuiAa Thadav Us:sunssus

Mr. Kevin Michael Goulding Chairperson
2 ungnadwu puidwudng ASSUNS

i ] 487,267

Mr. Kulvat Janvatanavit Director
3 uedsisu luy=Uayayrsssu ASSUN1SDas:

Mr. Jiravat Kosapanyatham Independent Director
4 uwaIsan Avduna ASSUASDaAs:

Miss Vorada Thangsurbkul Independent Director
5 ugadwu dau ASSUAS

Mr. Stephan Tan Director
6 ugIgaus dunsauAs ASSUNS

Mr. Natdanai Indrasukhsri Director

21
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A102ULLNUASSUAISILA:HUSKIS
Directors and Managements Remuneration

Ar0auassuMsNIUUUUSKIS LlazAssuA1sdas:

Non-Executive and Independent Director Remuneration

assunmisnliilugusKisuaznssunisdas:
Non-Executive and Independent Director

20,000
30,000
. Us=saunssuns
Chairperson
. ASSUNS
AcpuLNUSIELdaU (UIn) Member
Monthly Remuneration (Baht)
ASSUAISYQEDY
Board Committee 10,000
15,000

. Us=saunssunis
Chairperson

. ASSUNS
Member

Weouszyudando (Uin)
Monthly Meeting Fee per time (Baht)

22
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Management Team

u1g Jyd1a auudsudssuy
dUKUY WYI8ASSUMSKHIaNISANELIUUYE/AsIBU

uvuavduns duiiv:na
diukuv gaudemsarunasivaasumeiu

uvadagsau Sausvisav
AIUKUY FFIUIEAISAYLIUGDONIVAISIOTIKUIY

ulUSUNS JVAAISSA
dUKUY F31Ud8MSAIBUSKISAILINU

uvaaam aurnre:
dLkUL F81udgMSAIgWIIUISSAD

u1gd3nd NIAANI0A
diukuv gaudemsnignnkuig
uazmaumsuauaviu

Annual Report 2022

Management Team

Mr. Chatchawan Limpathanawat
Position Finance Lead

Mrs. Saengchan Tantiyagul
Position Audit Lead

Miss Valairat Rattanarungruang
Position Senior Distribution and Strategy Lead

Mr. Narin Wongsawan
Position Head of Agency

Miss Lalita Tanchaya
Position Head of Product & Underwriting

Mr. Wit Maschamadol
Position Head of Legal and Compliance

23



S180VUUs:DU 2565

10.

1.

u1gas1)s Wesaus:ans
dukuv Fusemsmewauuns:uuinaluladansauina

uIaAAM AuridY:
AUKUD FSUDEMSHIEWUUISSAD

uIADIUISU dunsay
duKUY F3udemsHIguSKIsLIUUAAA

uisudaa 7sA:A
dukuv gaudemsiigdulsu

u1BBaNa UISIWISAY
diukudv gaudemsihgUguans

doya fu Sui 31 SunAu 2565

24

Management Team

Mr. Sarawut Pienluprasith
Position Senior Manager for Technology

Miss Lalita Tanchaya
Position Head of Product & Underwriting

Miss Sumarin Intharak
Position Senior People Business Partner

Mr. Noppadon Jarusasi
Position Senior Manager, Claims

Mr. Chalit Borwonnauwarux
Position Senior Manager, Operations
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of FWD General Insurance Public Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the related statements of comprehensive income, changes in owners’ equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December
2022, its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai

Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that

the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | identify during my audit.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Wanwilai Phetsang
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5315

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 April 2023



FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Premium receivables
Accrued investment income
Reinsurance assets
Reinsurance receivables
Debt financial assets

Equity financial assets
Equipment

Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Commissions and brokerage paid in advance
Other assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Baht)

Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
7 101,689,688 182,981,560
8 47,660,394 35,819,304

702,615 684,612
9 135,801,179 173,503,992
10 45,087,642 91,850,141
11 307,324,018 142,601,493
12 83,176,342 90,827,777
14 5,974,471 9,479,348

15.1 30,263,155 42,261,565
16 7,792,096 7,028,223
17 16,317,274 18,882,380

24,777,995 31,256,038
18 59,750,516 26,265,319
866,317,385 853,441,752
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FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Lease liabilities
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred acquisition cost
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Registered
4,872,667 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each
(2021: 3,770,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each)
Issued and fully paid up
4,872,667 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each
(2021: 3,770,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each)
Capital reserve for share-based payments
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve
Other reserve
Unappropriated (deficits)
Other components of equity
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

DRAFT

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share
base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accuratgUNIY. Baht)

Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
19 367,042,418 430,619,577
20 103,051,284 68,553,356
15.2 33,238,094 45,090,397
21 11,561,779 17,756,090
24,663,037 30,088,464
22 54,259,824 37,020,272
593,816,436 629,128,156

23
487,266,700 377,000,000
487,266,700 377,000,000
24 43,569,355 34,911,556
25 10,177,006 10,177,006
7,000,000 7,000,000
(286,742,347) (213,842,611)
13 11,230,235 9,067,645
272,500,949 224,313,596
866,317,385 853,441,752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors



FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit or loss:

Income

Premium written

Less: Premium ceded

Net premium written

Add: Unearned premium reserve decrease from prior year
Net earned premium

Fees and commissions income

Net investment income

Gain (loss) on financial instruments

Fair value gain (loss) on financial instruments
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Claims expenses

Less: Claim recovery from reinsurers

Claims expenses, net

Unexpired risks reserves increased (decreased)
Commissions and brokerages expenses
Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Reversal expected credit loss

Other expense

Total expenses

Loss before income tax

Income tax expenses

Loss for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note 2022 2021
670,319,685 493,440,825
(271,597,334)  (154,831,535)
398,722,351 338,609,290
20,090,242 25,520,679
418,812,593 364,129,969
113,284,399 87,684,618

26 6,841,635 9,350,411
27 1,156,826 (939,691)
28 (7,644,273) 6,945,905
8,273,198 5,193,997

540,724,378 472,365,209
362,215,088 368,181,364
(145,994,700)  (182,753,708)
216,220,388 185,427,656
(1,003,136) 1,003,136

99,376,135 81,589,742

81,218,441 40,013,443

29 219,878,740 318,080,698
2,541,276 3,061,703
(35,464) (147,771)

488,611 609,793

30 618,684,991 629,638,400
(77,960,613)  (157,273,191)
17 (607,392) (3,067,290)
(78,568,005)  (160,340,481)
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Statement of comprehensive income (continued) DRA I i I

For the year ended 31 Docembor 2022 e s s
ot hereed pon s beine acur AN Baht)
Note 2022 2021
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Gain on changes in value of equity instrument
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
- net of income tax 2,162,590 4,896,611
Actuarial gain - net of income tax 5,668,269 3,521,647
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax 7,830,859 8,418,258
Other comprehensive income for the year - net tax 7,830,859 8,418,258
Total comprehensive income for the year (loss) (70,737,146) (151,922,223)
Loss per share
Basic loss per share 32 (17.03) (51.24)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Direct premium written

Cash receive (paid) related to reinsurance
Interest income

Dividend income

Other investment income

Other income

Loss incurred on direct insurance
Commissions and brokerages on direct insurance
Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Cash received from financial assets

Cash paid for financial assets

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchase of equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from issuance of the company's ordinary shares

Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Decreased in allowance for expected credit losses

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (Note 7)

Annual Report 2022

DRAFT
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base plan and change and therefore its conlei(z(j Lit: Baht)

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

2022 2021
658,762,276 466,791,972
72,576,406 (37,899,838)
4,025,965 5,547,297
2,846,715 4,310,107
14,500 105,950
7,784,585 3,917,460
(371,676,407)  (339,563,589)
(93,650,813) (68,080,995)
(86,859,283) (41,529,907)
(206,730,441)  (236,390,911)
198,495,046 312,961,676
(359,919,404) (71,103,419)
(174,330,855) (934,197)
(2,833,808) (26,335,463)
(2,833,808) (26,335,463)
110,266,700 77,000,000
(14,393,580) (14,133,908)
95,873,120 62,866,092
(81,291,543) 35,596,432
182,981,560 147,416,930
(329) (31,802)
101,689,688 182,981,560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General information

FWD General Insurance Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand whereby Bolttech Digital Solutions Holdings (Hong
Kong) Company Limited, which was incorporated in Hong Kong, is its parent Company. As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, that Company held 49% of the issued and paid-up share
capital of the Company. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of non-life
insurance. The registered office of the Company is at 44/1 12th Floor, Rungrojthanakul

Building, Ratchadapisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok.
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and the principles
stipulated by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC”). The presentation of the financial
statements has been made in compliance with the Notification of the OIC regarding criteria,
procedures, terms and conditions for preparation and submission of financial statements
and operating performance reports of non-life insurance companies (No.2) B.E. 2562 dated
4 April 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in note 4 to the financial statement, significant accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the

Thai language financial statements.
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3.2

4.1
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New financial reporting standards base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year 2022, the Company has adopted the revised financial reporting standards
and interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding
International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the

standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on

the Company’s financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal year beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying

accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users.

The management of the Company believes that adoption of these amendments will not have

any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

(@) Premium income

Premium income consists of direct premium and reinsurance premium less premium of
cancelled policy and premium refunded to the policy holders and adjusted by the

unearned premium reserve.
Direct premium income and reinsurance premium are recognised as unearned
premium reserve and amortised to income over the coverage period of the insurance
policy.

(b) Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income from ceded premium are recorded as discount on

reinsurance received in advance items and recognised as income over the coverage

period.
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(c) Investment income base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an
accrual basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, unless the financial asset subsequently becomes credit-impaired when
it is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit

loss allowance).
Dividends received

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is

established.
(d) Gain (loss) on financial instruments

Gains (losses) on the disposal or write off of debt instruments measured at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
and equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised in

profit or loss on the transaction date.
(e) Fair value gain (loss) on financial instruments

Fair value gains (losses) from changes in the fair value of equity instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as income or expense on

the fair value measurement date.
4.2 Expense recognition
(@) Ceded premium

Ceded premium is recorded as ceded premium paid in advance and amortised to

expenses over the coverage period.
(b) Claims and loss adjustment expenses

Claims and loss adjustment expenses consist of claim and loss adjustment expenses
of direct insurance and reinsurance for both reported claims and not reported claims,
and include the amounts of the claims, related expenses, and loss adjustments of the
current and prior period incurred during the year, less residual value, other recoveries

(if any), and claims recoveries from reinsurers.

Claims recoveries from reinsurers are recognised when the claims and losses
adjustment expenses are recorded in accordance with the conditions of the relevant

reinsurance contract.



s1evuUs:oU 2565

(d)

DRAFT

This document is in drafi form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share

Claims and loss adjustment expenses of direclrinsprance ane -recognised tpon:the
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receipt of the claims advice from the insured, based-on-the—claims—amount—hotified

by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s management. The maximum
value of claims estimated is not however, to exceed the sum-insured under the

relevant policy.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses of reinsurance are recognised as expenses
upon the receipt of the loss advice from the reinsurers, at the amounts notified.

Commission and brokerage fees expenses

Commission and brokerage fees are recorded as commission and brokerage paid in
advance items and amortised to expenses over the coverage period of the insurance
policy.

Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses are recognised as expenses from insurance, including
other direct and indirect expenses related to the underwriting process and the various
contributions that non-life insurance pay to the Office of Insurance Commission, the
General Insurance Fund, the Victims Compensation Fund, Road Accident Victims
Protection Company Limited, in accordance with the relevant Acts of parliament, which
are recognised to expenses on an accrual basis.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses are operating expenses that are not related to the underwriting
process and loss adjustment process that recognised as expenses on an accrual
basis.

Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is calculated

using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
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4.3 Product classification base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

The Company classifies insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts based on the nature

of the contract. An insurance contract is one under which the insurer has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the insured) by agreeing to compensate the
insured if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
insured. Determination of whether a significant insurance risk has been accepted is based
on comparison of the amount of benefit payable under the contract if an insured event
occurs with the payment obligation if the insured event does not occur. If a contract does not
meet these criteria, the Company classifies it as an investment contract. The investment
contract is legal form of insurance contract and gives rise to financial risk for the insurer,
without transferring significant insurance risk to the insurer. Financial risk is the risk of

change in an interest rate, exchange rate or price.

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of the insurance risk at an
inception of the contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract has been
classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its
lifetime, even if the insurance risk diminishes significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be

reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

The Company classifies all insurance contracts as short-term insurance contracts, which
means insurance contracts that have coverage periods of up to 1 year and no automatic
renewal clause, as well as critical illness and personal accident contracts that have
coverage periods of more than 1 year, but the Company can terminate them, increase or
decrease the insurance premiums or change any benefits of the insurance contracts

throughout the coverage period.
4.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid
investment with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.



s1evuUs:oU 2565 D RAF T

4.5

4.6

4.7

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
. . review outstanding matters included share
Premium receivables and allowance for doubtful ageeuntsu.d change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Premium receivables from direct are stated at the net realisable value. The Company sets

up an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the estimated loss that may incur in
collection of the premium receivable, on the basis of collection experiences, analysis of
debtor aging and a review of current status of the premium receivable as at the end of

reporting period.

Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts is recognised as expense during the

year.
Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets are stated at the insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers which is
estimated based on the related reinsurance contract of premium reserve, loss reserve and
outstanding claims in accordance with the law regarding insurance reserve and unearned

premium reserve related to reinsurance calculation.

The Company set up an allowance for doubtful accounts of reinsurance assets when the
impairment indicator has occurred based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection
of the reinsurance assets, on the basis of collection experiences, analysis of debtor aging
and a review of current status of the reinsurer as at the end of reporting period. Increase

(decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts is recognised as expense during the year.
Reinsurance receivables and reinsurance payables

(a) Reinsurance receivables are stated at the outstanding balance of amounts due from

reinsurers and amounts deposit on reinsurance.

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of inward premium receivables, accrued
commissions and brokerage fees income, claims and various other items receivable
from reinsurers, less allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records
allowance for doubtful accounts for the estimated loss that may be incurred due to
inability to make collection, taking into account collection experience and the status of

receivables from reinsurers as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Reinsurance payables are stated at the outstanding balance payable from reinsurance

and amounts withheld on reinsurance.

Amounts due to reinsurers consist of reinsurance premiums and other items payable

to reinsurers, excluding outstanding claims.
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amounts due to reinsurers) when the following criteria-fer-effsetting-are-met:

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of

financial position, and

(2) The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements

of financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.
Financial instruments
Debt and equity instrument

The Company has classified its financial assets as at the initially transactions as financial

assets - debt instruments and equity instruments as follows:

Financial assets - debt instruments

The Company has classified investments in debt instruments as financial assets to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value, based on the Company’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets, on the basis of the facts and circumstances in existence when the financial
reporting standard is first adopted or on the date of acquisition, with classifications as

follows:
(@) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Investments in debt instruments are classified as financial assets measured at
amortised cost if they meet both of the following conditions: the financial asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms of the financial assets represent
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are initially recognised at fair

value as at transaction date.

At the end of reporting period, investments in debt instruments measured at amortised
cost are presented in the statement of financial position net of allowance for expected

credit loss (if any).

Gain or loss arising from disposal, change or impairment of the asset are recognised in

profit or loss.



s1evuUs:oU 2565

Financial assets - equity instruments base plan and change and therefore its contents

DRAFT

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share

All equity instruments are recognised at fair value in the statementof fimanciat; ctassifiredas

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

follows:

(@)

(b)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in equity instruments that are held for trading are classified as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, and the classification is

irrevocable. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

After initial recognition, gain or loss arising from changes in fair value are recognised in

profit or loss.

At the end of reporting period, investments in equity instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in the statement of financial position at fair

value.
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading but held for strategic
purposes or are investments in securities with high market volatility are classified as
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, and the
classification is irrevocable. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The Company also classifies investments in real estate investment
trusts and infrastructure trusts, infrastructure funds and property funds as investments
in equity instrument designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of
investments in equity instruments are separately presented in other comprehensive

income.

At the end of the reporting period, investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are presented in the statement of financial
position at fair value.

Investments in equity instruments are designated to be measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income without requiring impairment assessment.

Fair value

The fair value of marketable securities is calculated based on the latest bid price of the last

working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value of non-

marketable securities is calculated using discounted future cash flow techniques and/or

compare with other information of the similar nature. The fair value of government bonds,

state enterprise securities and private debt securities is calculated using the formula

determined by the Thai Bond Market Association while the fair value of non-listed unit trusts

is determined based on their net asset value.
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Investment income and disposal of investments base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Gain or loss arising from disposal of investments are recognised in profit or loss in the

statement of comprehensive income on the transaction date except for gain or loss from
disposal of investments in equity instruments designated to be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which are recognised in retained earnings. The

weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost

of the investments.

Changes in classification of investments in debt instruments

When there are changes in the Company’s business model for management of financial
assets, the Company has to reclassify investments in debt instruments and adjust the value
of these investments to their fair value on the reclassification date. Differences between the
book value and fair value of investments in debt instruments on the reclassification date are
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, depending on the classification of

the investments.
Allowance for expected credit loss of financial assets

The Company recognised expected credit loss on its financial assets that are debt
instruments, such as cash and cash equivalent, financial assets that are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost or measured at fair value through comprehensive income
by applying the general approach in accordance with TFRS9. The Company recognised an
allowance for expected credit loss at the amount equivalent to the lifetime expected credit
loss when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the initial recognition
date but that are not credit-impaired or that are impaired. However, if there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition date, the Company recognised
allowance for expected credit loss at the amount equivalent to the expected credit loss in

the next 12 months.

At every reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk of financial assets since initial recognition by considering internal

and external credit ratings of the counterparties and overdue status.
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default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Gempany-assessed—Rb-anrd—+cb-by

considering the historical loss experience adjusted with current observable data and
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. The Company determines EAD

using gross carrying value at the reporting date.

For other financial assets or contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component, the Company applies a simplified approach to determine the lifetime expected
credit loss. It is based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-

looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Increase (decrease) in allowance for expected credit loss is recognised as expenses during

the year in profit or loss in statement of comprehensive income.
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date, the date on which the
Company becomes a party to contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular

way trades.

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has transferred control

of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

10
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Equipment and depreciation base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment

(if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis

over the following estimated useful lives:

Office equipment 5 years
Fixture 5 years
Hardwares 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on work in progress.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset (the
difference between the net compensation from disposal of an assets and the carrying

amounts) is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible
assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets with finite useful lives which are computer software are

10 years.

No amortisation is provided on software in progress.

11
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cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment review in respect of

the equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less

costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairmentloss is recognised in profit or loss as part of the statement of comprehensive

income.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment loss may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased in carrying amount of
the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the

asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are stated at the loss reserves and outstanding claims and

premium reserve.
(a) Loss reserves and outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are recorded at the amount to be actually paid. Loss reserves are
provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on the claims notified by
the insured and estimates made by the Company’s management. The maximum value

of claims estimate shall not exceed the sum-insured of the related insurance policies.

Claim reserves were calculated by using an actuarial method based on a best estimate
of claims, that are expected to be paid in respect of loss that occurred before or as at
the reporting date, covering both reported and not reported loss, and including claim
handling expenses after deducing salvage values that are expected to be received,
including recovery from litigants. Differences between the calculated provision for
claims and the claims already recognised are recorded as incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR).

12
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(b) Premium reserves base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Premium reserves consist of unearned premium reserve and unexpired risk reserve.

(1) Unearned premium reserve

Unearned premium reserve is calculated based on direct premium before

deducting premium ceded as follows:

Transportation (cargo), travelling - 100% of premium as from the date policy
accident with coverage periods is effective, throughout the period of
of not over six-months insurance coverage

Others - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred thirty fifth basis)

The reserve for unearned reinsurance premiums is calculated based on the
proportion of premium ceded, using the same method as that applied for direct
insurance policies that transfer the insurance risk throughout the term of the

insurance contract to a reinsurer.

However, the increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves from prior year

is to be recognised in profit or loss.
(2) Unexpired risk reserve

Unexpired risk reserve is the reserve for the future claims that may be incurred in
respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserve is set aside using an actuarial
method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected to be incurred during

the remaining period of coverage, based on historical claims data.

As at the end of reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of
unexpired risk reserve with unearned premium reserve, and if unexpired risk
reserve is higher than unearned premium reserve, the difference is recognised,

and the unexpired risk reserve is presented in the financial statements.
4.16 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the

Company.

They also include individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management
personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the

Company’s operations.
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4.18

This document is in drafi form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share

Employee benefits base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a
separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when

incurred.

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law and other employee benefit plan, namely long
service awards. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined

benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other employee benefit plan are
determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques,

using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised

immediately in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from other long-term benefits are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtailment and the date that the Company recognises restructuring-related

costs.

Share-based payment transactions

The parent company offers share-based compensation plans to certain key employees of
the Group as part of compensation plans aligned with services provided in achieving
shareholder value targets. These share-based compensation plans are the parent
company’s equity-settled plans and the costs of the plans are determined based upon the
fair value of the shares granted, the vesting periods and the vesting conditions and
recognised as expenses in statements of income over the vesting periods with a

corresponding amount recorded in owners’ equity.
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. cannot be relied ypon as being accurate.

Any impact arising from revisions to original estimate
corresponding adjustment to owners’ equity. Where awards have grand vesting terms, each
tranche is recognised as a separate award, and the fair value of each tranche is recognised

over the applicable vesting period.

4.19 Leases

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the
lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Company recognises right-
of-use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on

lease payments.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment loss, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease less

any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-

line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Lease buildings 3-10 years
Office equipment 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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4.21
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The Company discounted the present value of the |lease.payments by theinterestorate
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implicit in the lease or the Company’s incremental borrewing-rate—After-the-ecommeneement

date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a

change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or
a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while it
recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be
utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are
recorded directly to equity.
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4.22 Fair value measurement base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Tiability in

an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their
assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial
reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measure fair value using
valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured

at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categories of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determine whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards at times requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgments and estimates are as follows:
5.1 Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management
is required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or
liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and

arrangements.
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
. . . review outstanding matters included share
Allowances for expected credit loss of financial assetspiun and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

The management is required to use judgement in estimating allowance tor expected cred

t

loss of financial assets. The Company’s calculation of allowance for expected credit loss

depends on the criteria used for assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, the
development of a model, the debtors status analysis, and the probability of debt collection.
This estimation has various relevant factors; therefore, the actual results may differ from

estimates.
Allowance for doubtful accounts for premium receivables

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make
judgment and estimates based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection of the
premium receivables, on the basis of collection experiences, analysis of debtor aging and

current economic conditions.
Allowance for impairment of reinsurance assets

In determining an allowance for impairment of reinsurance assets, the management needs
to make judgment and estimates based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection of
each reinsurer, on the basis of reinsurance contract and the event that might be effect to the

Company’s collection regarding to the reinsurance contracts.
Equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of equipment, the management is required to make estimates of
the useful lives and residual value of the equipment and to review estimate useful lives and

residual value when there are any changes.

In addition, the management assesses whether there are indicators of the impairment of
equipment and record impairment loss in the year when it is determined that the recoverable
amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments in terms of forecasting

future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible assets and amortisation

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset
and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those

cash flows.
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5.7 Deferred tax assets base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax

losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and unused tax loss can be utilised. Significant management
judgmentis required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,

based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
5.8 Classification of insurance contract

In determining whether insurance contracts meet the definition of insurance contracts under
Thai Financial Reporting Standard, the Company is required to test whether the contracts
accept/transfer significant insurance risk from/to the insurers/reinsurers, using actuarial
technique based on assumptions regarding historical claim data and other assumptions.

The management is required to exercise judgement in determining these assumptions.

5.9 Loss reserves and outstanding claims

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and
outstanding claims taking into account two factors. These are the claims incurred and
reported, and the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). The ultimate loss of outstanding
claims is established using a range of standard actuarial claims projection technique. The
main assumptions underlying these techniques relate to historical experience, including the
development of claims estimates, paid and incurred losses, and average costs per claim etc.
To perform the calculation, it is necessary to perform analysis based on the type of
insurance and to use the services of an actuary with expertise, experience, and an
understanding of the insurance business and the Company’s products.

The estimation requires the management’s judgements reflecting the best estimates
available at that time. Nevertheless, such estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and
actual results could differ.

5.10 Unexpired risk reserve

Unexpired risk reserve is calculated using an actuarial method, based on a best estimate of
the claims and related expenses expected to be incur over the remaining term of the
insurance. Estimating the reserve requires the management to exercise judgment, with
reference to historical data and the best estimates available at the time.

5.11 Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future
salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
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5.12

5.13

5.14

This document is in drafi form. It is subject to
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Leases base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Determining the lease term with extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an

economic incentive for the Company to exercise either the extension or termination option.
Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate
to discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar

economic environment.
Litigation
The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Company’s management

used judgment to assess of the results of the litigation and believes that loss incurred will

not exceed the recorded amounts as at the end of reporting period.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises judgment,
using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from
observable markets, and includes consideration of credit risk, liquidity, correlation and
longer-term volatility of financial instruments. Change in assumptions about these factors

could affect the fair value and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities were classified as follow.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Debt financial assets

Equity financial assets

Claims receivable from litigants - net -

Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Debt financial assets

Equity financial assets

Claims receivable from litigants - net -

Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2022
Equity
Financial instruments
instruments designated
measured at at fair value Financial
fair value through other instruments
through profit comprehensive measured at
or loss income amortised cost Total
- - 101,689,688 101,689,688
- - 702,615 702,615
- - 307,324,018 307,324,018
68,651,828 14,524,514 - 83,176,342
- 1,441,929 1,441,929
- - 33,238,094 33,238,094
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2021
Equity
Financial instruments
instruments designated
measured at at fair value Financial
fair value through other instruments
through profit comprehensive measured at
or loss income amortised cost Total
- - 182,981,560 182,981,560
- - 684,612 684,612
- - 142,601,493 142,601,493
79,006,501 11,821,276 - 90,827,777
- 1,359,336 1,359,336
- - 45,090,397 45,090,397
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Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
Cash on hand - 20,000
Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 91,718,514 88,042,661
Deposits at banks with fixed maturity date and negotiable
certificates deposits at bank 10,000,000 95,000,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 101,718,514 183,062,661
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (28,826) (81,101)
101,689,688 182,981,560

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits in saving accounts and fixed deposits carried
interests between 0.025 and 0.35 percent per annum (2021: between 0.05 and 0.70 percent

per annum).

Premium receivables

The balances as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 of premium receivables are classified by

aging from the maturity date under the stipulated law of the premium collection as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
Not yet due 44,261,664 26,703,796
Not over 30 days 6,158,212 3,968,927
Over 31 days to 60 days 453,282 3,294,309
Over 61 days to 90 days 247,139 2,363,498
Over 90 days 6,510,747 4,793,373
Total premium receivables 57,631,044 41,123,903
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (9,970,650) (5,304,599)
47,660,394 35,819,304

Premium receivables, net

For premium receivables due from agents and brokers, the Company has stipulated the

collection guideline in accordance with the law of the premium collection. For overdue

premium receivables, the Company has the legal process with such agents and brokers.
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Reinsurance assets

Insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers
Loss reserves
Unearned premium reserve

Unexpired risk reserve

Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance receivables

Amounts due from reinsurers

Reinsurance receivables

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share
base plan and change and therefore its contents
cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
54,036,611 58,667,553
81,764,568 67,403,320
- 47,433,119
135,801,179 173,503,992
(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
45,087,642 91,850,141
45,087,642 91,850,141

The balances as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 of amounts due from reinsurers are

classified by aging as follows:

Not yet due
Not over 12 months

Over 1 year

Total amounts due from reinsurers, net

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
9,169,062 7,599,068
35,918,545 84,236,458
35 14,615
45,087,642 91,850,141
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11. Debt financial assets base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

11.1 Classified by type of financial assets
(Unit: Baht)
Amortised cost

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Government bonds 60,160,403 60,223,739
Saving lotteries 3,250,000 3,400,000
Deposits at financial institutions which amounts

maturing over 3 months 244,000,000 79,047,115
Total 307,410,403 142,670,854
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (86,385) (69,361)
Total debt instruments measured at amortised cost 307,324,018 142,601,493
Total debt financial asset, net 307,324,018 142,601,493

11.2 Classified by stage of credit risk

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2022
Allowance for
expected credit
loss which is
Carrying value - recognised in
gross profit or loss Carrying value
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Stage 1 - Debt securities with no significant
increase in credit risk 307,410,403 (86,385) 307,324,018
Total 307,410,403 (86,385) 307,324,018
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2021
Allowance for
expected credit
loss which is
Carrying value - recognised in
gross profit or loss Carrying value
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Stage 1 - Debt securities with no significant
increase in credit risk 142,670,854 (69,361) 142,601,493
Total 142,670,854 (69,361) 142,601,493
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has placed its securities with the

Registrar in accordance with the Non-life Insurance Act as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December

2022 2021
Cost/ Cost/
Amortised Cost Fair value Amortised Cost Fair value

Assets pledges

Fixed deposits 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0
Assets reserve as

non-life insurance reserve

Government bonds 60.2 61.5 60.2 63.9

Total 74.2 75.5 74.2 77.9

11.4 Other assets with restrictions and commitments

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had pledged the following assets as

collateral.

Restricted deposits at banks and saving lotteries
Letter of guarantees
Bail bond

Corporate credit card

Total

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
110,000 20,000
650,000 400,000
255,000 200,000
1,015,000 620,000
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12. Equity financial assets cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

12.1 Classified by type of investments

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Equity instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Listed equity instruments 85,739,895 68,651,828 88,450,295 79,006,501
Total 85,739,895 68,651,828 88,450,295 79,006,501
Less: Unrealised loss (17,088,067) (9,443,794)
Total equity instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss 68,651,828 79,006,501
Equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income
Non-listed equity instruments 486,720 14,524,514 486,720 11,821,276
Total 486,720 14,524,514 486,720 11,821,276
Add: Unrealised gain 14,037,794 11,334,556
Total equity instruments designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 14,524,514 11,821,276
83,176,342 83,176,342 90,827,777 90,827,777

Total equity financial asset, net
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Equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Non-listed equity instruments

Total

12.3 Investments derecognition

DRAFT~
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other comprehensive incomenienss

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

2022

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
Dividend Dividend
Fair value received Fair value received
14,524,514 30,375 11,821,276 30,375
14,524,514 30,375 11,821,276 30,375

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has no disposal of its

investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income from the accounts.

13. Other components of equity

(Unit: Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

Equity instruments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year

Unrealised gain during the year

Related income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year - net tax

Total

2022 2021
9,067,645 4,171,034
2,703,238 4,427,947

(540,648) 468,664
2,162,590 4,896,611
11,230,235 9,067,645
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Equipment cannot be relied upon as being accurate.
(Unit: Baht)
Office
equipment Fixture Vehicles Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2021 44,731,679 20,675,119 843,273 66,250,071
Additions 4,598,166 878,235 3,585,000 9,061,401
Disposals (3,974,126) - (834,273) (4,808,399)
Write-off (3,985,617) (6,879,938) (9,000) (10,874,555)
As at 31 December 2021 41,370,102 14,673,416 3,585,000 59,628,518
Additions 2,607,343 - - 2,607,343
Disposals - - (3,585,000) (3,585,000)
Write-off (33,779,761) (13,207,829) - (46,987,590)
As at 31 December 2022 10,197,684 1,465,587 - 11,663,271
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2021 42,270,700 20,011,774 843,267 63,125,741
Depreciation for the year 1,565,043 261,455 504,846 2,331,344
Depreciation on disposals (3,956,189) - (834,270) (4,790,459)
Depreciation on write-off (3,699,672) (6,808,788) (8,996) (10,517,456)
As at 31 December 2021 36,179,882 13,464,441 504,847 50,149,170
Depreciation for the year 2,736,550 289,712 583,421 3,609,683
Depreciation on disposals - - (1,088,268) (1,088,268)
Depreciation on write-off (33,775,845) (13,205,940) - (46,981,785)
As at 31 December 2022 5,140,587 548,213 - 5,688,800
Net book value
As at 31 December 2021 5,190,220 1,208,975 3,080,153 9,479,348
As at 31 December 2022 5,057,097 917,374 - 5,974,471
Depreciation for the year
2021 2,331,344
2022 3,609,683

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has equipment items which have been fully
depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated
depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 0.3 million (2021: Baht 46.8

million).
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The Company has entered into lease agreements for rental of buildings, office equipment

and vehicles for use in its operation. The terms of the agreements are generally between

3 - 8 years.

Right-of-use assets

Movement of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

summarised below:

As at 1 January 2021, net book value
Additions during the year

Depreciation for the year

As at 31 December 2021, net book value
Additions during the year

Depreciation for the year

As at 31 December 2022, net book value

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2021
Acquisitions during the year

Financial cost for the year

Lease payments during the year

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021
Acquisitions during the year

Financial cost for the year

Lease payments during the year

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Lease Office
buildings equipment Vehicles Total
39,692,114 11,554,751 3,169,382 54,416,247
634,331 - - 634,331
(6,728,615) (4,661,997) (1,398,401) (12,789,013)
33,597,830 6,892,754 1,770,981 42,261,565
(6,320,157) (4,279,853) (1,398,400) (11,998,410)
27,277,673 2,612,901 372,581 30,263,155
(Unit: Baht)
Lease Office
buildings equipment Vehicles Total
41,087,645 11,433,787 3,463,733 55,985,165
634,331 - - 634,331
2,529,072 574,726 164,992 3,268,790
(8,040,099) (5,139,950) (1,617,840) (14,797,889)
36,210,949 6,868,563 2,010,885 45,090,397
2,179,305 288,053 73,917 2,541,275
(7,692,320) (5,083,418) (1,617,840) (14,393,578)
30,697,934 2,073,198 466,962 33,238,094
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15.3

Undiscounted lease liabilities
Due within 1 year

Due longer than 1 year

Total undiscounted lease liabilities
Less: Deferred interest expenses

Lease liabilities at the end of the year

Undiscounted lease liabilities

Due within 1 year

Due longer than 1 year
Total undiscounted lease liabilities
Less: Deferred interest expenses

Lease liabilities at the end of the year

Lease expenses are recognised in profit or loss

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Financial cost on lease liabilities
Short term lease expenses

Total expenses

DRAFT

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
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base plan and change and therefore its ({dnitzBaht)

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.
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Lease Office
buildings equipment Vehicles Total
7,747,024 2,020,582 470,800 10,238,406
27,761,005 95,000 - 27,856,005
35,508,029 2,115,582 470,800 38,094,411
(4,810,095) (42,384) (3,838) (4,856,317)
30,697,934 2,073,198 466,962 33,238,094
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2021
Lease Office
buildings equipment Vehicles Total
7,692,120 4,776,000 1,617,840 14,085,960
35,508,030 2,423,000 470,800 38,401,830
43,200,150 7,199,000 2,088,640 52,487,790
(6,989,201) (330,437) (77,755) (7,397,393)
36,210,949 6,868,563 2,010,885 45,090,397
(Unit: Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021
11,998,410 12,324,296
2,541,275 3,061,703

- 322,819
14,539,685 15,708,818
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The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is presented

below.

As at 31 December 2022:
Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book value
As at 31 December 2021:
Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

(Unit: Baht)
Computer software
and software in

progress

18,918,216
(11,126,120)

7,792,096

33,176,731
(26,148,508)

7,028,223

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2022 and 2021 is

presented below.

Net book value at beginning of year

Acquisition of computer software

Write-off - net
Amortisation during the year

Net book value at end of year

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
7,028,223 5,711,330
2,200,550 4,698,830
(1,397) (1,946,290)
(1,435,280) (1,435,647)
7,792,096 7,028,223

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has computer software items which have

been fully amortised but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting

accumulated amortisation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 4.2 million and

Baht 16.4 million, respectively.
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Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities/income

Deferred tax assets/liabilities
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities are as follows.

31 December

31 December

(Unit: Baht)

Changes in deferred tax

assets or liabilities

2022 2021 2022 2021

Deferred tax assets
Unearned premium reserves - 607,392 (607,392) -
Loss reserves 16,371,275 16,371,275 - (1,736,833)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 227,206 227,206 - -
Employee benefits obligations 2,134,151 3,551,218 (1,417,066) (646,774)
Loss on changes in equity investments

measured at fair value through profit or

loss 392,201 392,201 - (646,879)
Total 19,124,833 21,149,292 (2,024,458) (3,030,486)
Deferred tax liabilities
Gain on changes in equity instruments

designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (2,807,559) (2,266,912) (540,648) 468,663
Total (2,807,559) (2,266,912) (540,648) 468,663
Deferred tax asset - net 16,317,274 18,882,380 (2,565,106) (2,561,823)
Change in deferred tax assets or

liabilities recognised in:
- Profit or loss (607,392) (3,067,290)
- Other comprehensive income (1,957,714) 505,467
Total (2,565,106) (2,561,823)

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses totaling Baht 430.3 million (2021: Baht 348.7 million), on which deferred tax

assets have not been recognised as the Company believes that there is an uncertainty to

allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused tax losses.

The unused tax losses amounting to Baht 410.3 million will expire by 2023, 2024, 2025,
2026, and 2027 amounting to Baht 62.5 million, Baht 98.4 million, Baht 36.1 million, Baht

127.6 million and Baht 85.7 million, respectively.
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Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are made up as

follows:
(Unit: Baht)

2022 2021
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge - -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 607,392 3,067,290
Income tax expenses reported in profit or loss 607,392 3,067,290

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Deferred tax on gain from the change in value of equity
instruments measured at FVOCI 540,648 (468,663)
Deferred tax on actuarial gains (loss) 1,417,066 (36,804)
1,957,714 (505,467)

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting loss multiplied

by the applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021

Accounting loss before income tax (77,960,613) (157,273,191)
Applicable tax rate 20% 20%
Accounting loss before tax multiplied by income tax rate (15,592,123) (31,454,638)
Net tax effect on income or expenses that are not taxable or

not deductible in determining taxable profits 2,048,360 6,969,112
Net tax effect on tax loss which are not recorded as deferred

tax assets 14,151,155 27,552,816
Income tax expenses reported in the statements of

comprehensive income 607,392 3,067,290
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18. Other assets

Ceded premium paid in advance - net
Advance payment

Deposit and guarantee

Withholding deducted at source
Others

Total

19. Insurance contract liabilities

Loss reserves and outstanding claims
- Claims incurred and reported
- Claims incurred but not reported
Premium reserve
- Unearned premium reserve

- Unexpired risks reserve

Total

Loss reserves and outstanding claims
- Claims incurred and reported
- Claims incurred but not reported
Premium reserve
- Unearned premium reserve
- Unexpired risks reserve

Total

DRAFT

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share
base plan and change and therefore its contents
cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
5,871,138 4,769,416
6,600,000 6,658,600
3,805,390 3,805,390
5,165,487 3,601,377
38,308,501 7,430,536
59,750,516 26,265,319
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2022
Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net
48,259,969 (11,946,083) 36,313,886
97,874,348 (42,090,528) 55,783,820
220,908,101 (81,764,568) 139,143,533
367,042,418 (135,801,179) 231,241,239
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2021
Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net
59,042,178 (17,020,690) 42,021,488
96,504,048 (41,646,863) 54,857,185
226,637,095 (67,403,319) 159,233,776
48,436,256 (47,433,120) 1,003,136
430,619,577 (173,503,992) 257,115,585
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agreements in order to mitigate insurance risk. Alth
basis by management. However, insurance contract liabilities disclosures have been made

on both a gross and net basis in order to provide a comprehensive set of disclosures.

The method used in determining the assumptions applied in the calculation of insurance
liability reserves involved the selection of an estimation method, best estimate and
appropriate variables, while excluding historical fluctuations that were expected to be non-

recurring, or have a short-term effect, based on the Company’s past experience.
1. Assumptions regarding claims experience

1.1 The initial expected loss ratio (IELR) is the claims ratio used to determine
insurance premiums or the claims expected to be incurred from the sale of a
particular insurance policy. When calculating loss reserves, IELR is used in
determining the ultimate losses under the loss ratio method and the claims of the
most recent year under the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method because the claims

data is limited and not fully developed.

1.2 Projected ultimate loss ratio (PULR) is the ultimate losses expected to be
incurred with respect to unearned premium reserve. The assumptions applied for
PULR are determined based on the ultimate loss ratio (ULR) of the most recent

year.
2. Assumptions regarding expenses

2.1 The unallocated loss adjustment expenses before and after reinsurance are
assumed to be equal because the Company is responsible for those unallocated

loss adjustment expenses that cannot be recharged to reinsurers.

2.2 Insurance policy maintenance expenses are determined based on analysis of the

3-year average of actual maintenance expenses.

2.3 Assumptions regarding reinsurance expenses are determined based on the data

of the most recent year.
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3. Assumptions relating to the discount rate are thai-im.making.pest/ estimates ef-lo$s
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reserves and unearned premium reserves, a d

Company’s liabilities are mainly short-term liabilities.

4. Aninflation rate is not applied in the determination of claims expected to be paid in the
future because the effect of historical inflation was included in past claims payment
data and its development to date. As a result, the effect of inflation on future claims

payments is already implicitly included in the calculation.

19.1 Loss reserves

(Unit: Baht)
For the years ended 31 December
2022 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 155,546,226 129,796,587
Claims expenses for the year 357,493,533 362,738,478
Changes in claims expenses and assumption for

calculate losses reserve (7,949,559) (8,004,778)
Claims expenses paid during the year (358,955,883) (328,984,061)
Balance at the end of the year 146,134,317 155,546,226

As at 31 December 2022, the Company, which is a reinsurer under the reinsurance
contracts, has loss reserves under such contracts amounting Baht 0.1 million (2021: Baht
0.2 million).
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19.3 Criteria and assumptions base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Claims estimates incorporate a number of uncertain elements and actual results may differ

from expectations due to fluctuations. However, the estimates were made using an actuarial
method, which is a generally accepted method, and efforts have been made to set
assumptions and reduce uncertainty as far as possible. In general, the estimates do not
take into account catastrophes, and insurance contract liabilities are extinguished upon
completing the claims settlement. Details of assumptions used in calculating the reserve for

liabilities are as follows:
1)  Assumption relating to claims experience
1.1 Economic assumptions

The calculation has not been included future investment earnings and claim
amounts payable in the future have not been inflation adjusted. However, the
inflation rate has been adjusted to reflect historical claims development.
In analysing claims, the Company included direct costs associated with claims
payments, collectively known as allocated loss adjustment expenses (ALAE), in
accordance with the Risk-Based Capital Framework. Therefore, the estimates

future claims include such expenses.
1.2 Loss development factors

The loss development factors (LDF) were selected based on a range of criteria
which included the historical claims paid and claims incurred pattern. In most
instances, the loss development factors selected were based on various average
loss development factors for each development year. The Company has also
taken into consideration whether averages may not be appropriate, such as
when the average does not reflect the Company’s operational changes, the
average is inappropriate due to distortion by large claims, or the average is
contrary to a trend in the recent ratios. Both qualitative and quantitative factors
have been taken into consideration in the selection of LDF to produce incurred
but not report claims (IBNR) that appropriately reflect the Company’s future

claims liability as at the valuation date.
1.3 Provision for adverse deviations

The provision for adverse deviations (PAD) was set aside with a confidence level
in the 80" - 90™ percentile.
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20.

2)  Assumptions of related expenses - unallocated |

expenses that are incurred in the process of f
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0ss adjustroentexpenses (WLAkL).afe

cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

attributable to any specific claim or specific policy, such as payroll, office rental

expenses, and operating expenses of the claims department. Allowance for ULAE is

set aside to cover the expected cost of the claims, using an allocation method on the

actual expenses occurring during the year.

Unearned premium reserves

Balance at the beginning of the year
Premium written for the year

Premium earned for the current year

Balance at the end of the year

Unexpired risk reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Estimated claims

Balance at the end of the year

Reinsurance payables

Amounts withheld on reinsurance
Amounts due to reinsurers

Total reinsurance payables

(Unit: Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021
226,637,095 284,509,258
670,319,685 493,440,825

(676,048,679) (551,312,988)

220,908,101 226,637,095

(Unit: Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021
48,436,256 -
(48,436,256) 48,436,256
- 48,436,256
(Unit: Baht)

31 December

2022 2021
63,379,436 45,217,551
39,671,848 23,335,805

103,051,284 68,553,356
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Employee benefit obligations

Provision for long-term retirement benefit, which is compensations on employees’ retirement

for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
For the years ended 31 December
2022 2021
Provision for long-term retirement benefit at the
beginning of the year 17,756,090 25,563,198
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 2,839,466 2,667,052
Interest cost 348,630 289,732
Past service cost (2,297,073) (5,772,249)
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses (gains)
Demographic assumptions changes - (771,577)
Financial assumptions changes (1,078,993) (1,698,404)
Experience adjustments (6,006,341) (1,014,862)
Benefits paid during the year - (1,506,800)
Provision for long-term retirement benefit at the
end of the year 11,561,779 17,756,090

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss consist of the following:

(Unit: Baht)
For the years ended 31 December
2022 2021
Claims and losses adjustments expenses 349,334 22,836
Other underwriting expenses 488,877 (130,650)
Operating expenses 52,812 (2,707,651)
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 891,023 (2,815,465)

The Company expects to pay Baht 0.9 million of long-term employee benefits during the
next year (2021: Baht 1.0 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term
employee benefit is 14.7 years (2021: 14.8 years).
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2022 2021
(% per annum) (% per annum)
Discount rate 1.37-5.22 0.52 - 3.56
Future salary increase rate 4.50-7.00 5.00 - 6.50
Staff turnover rate 0.00 - 30.00 0.00 - 30.00

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of
the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

summarised below:

(Unit: Baht)

Increase (decrease) in provision

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Discount rate

Increase 1% (931,217) (1,695,108)

Decrease 1% 1,068,056 1,931,777
Salary increase rate

Increase 1% 954,179 1,709,084

Decrease 1% (852,150) (1,537,341)
Staff turnover rate

Increase 20% (1,079,020) (2,074,739)

Decrease 20% 1,362,600 2,508,975

22. Other liabilities
(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021

Commission payables 5,360,841 5,975,953
Accrued expenses 34,702,497 18,115,397
Asset payables 211,638 762,438
Accrued bonus 4,034,200 7,133,990
Others 9,950,648 5,032,494
Total 54,259,824 37,020,272
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Share capital cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

Reconciliation of authorised and fully paid-up ordinary shares of the Company are as follow

Issuance and

Annual Repor] 2022

Number of shares paid-up value
(Shares) (Baht)
As at 1 January 2021 3,000,000 300,000,000
Issued additional ordinary shares 770,000 77,000,000
As at 31 December 2021 3,770,000 377,000,000
Issued additional ordinary shares 1,102,667 110,266,700
As at 31 December 2022 4,872,667 487,266,700

On 20 January 2022, the Extraordinary General Meeting No. 1/2022 of the Company’s
shareholders has resolved to approve the increase in the Company’s registered share
capital from Baht 377.0 million to Baht 487.3 million, by issuing new 1,102,667 ordinary
shares at a par value of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 110.3 million. The Company already
issued additional ordinary shares and registered such issued and paid-up share capital with
the Ministry of Commerce on 28 March 2022.

Capital reserve for share-based payments

The ultimate parent company offers share-based compensation plans to certain key
employees of the Group as part of compensation plans aligned with services provided in
achieving shareholder value targets. These share-based compensation plans are the parent
company’s equity-settled plans and the costs of the plans are determined based upon the
fair value of the shares granted, the vesting periods and the vesting conditions and
recognised as expenses in profit or loss over the vesting periods with a corresponding
amount recorded in owners’ equity. These awards have vesting periods of up to three years

and at nil cost to the eligible person.

At each reporting period-end, the parent company assesses the number of shares that are
expected to vest. Any impact arising from revisions to original estimates is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to owners’ equity. Where awards have graded
vesting terms, each tranche is recognised as a separate award, and the fair value of each

tranche is recognised over the applicable vesting period.
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plan granted during the year by referencing to the makket-ralve-ofuitimate-parentcompany

at the date of grant, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards

were granted.

The Company recognised share-based payments transaction amounting Baht 8.7 million
(2021: Baht 34.9 million) as an expense through profit or loss and owner equity under the

caption of capital reserve for share-based payments.
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting

accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered

capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Net investment income

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has the following net

investment income.

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Interest income from debt instruments asset 3,994,920 5,040,304
Dividend income from equity instruments 2,846,715 4,310,107
Total 6,841,635 9,350,411
Gain (loss) from financial instruments
(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Gain (loss) on sale of equity instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss 1,156,826 (939,691)
Total 1,156,826 (939,691)
Fair value gain (loss) on financial instruments
(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Equity instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (7,644,273) 6,945,905
Total (7,644,273) 6,945,905
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Operating expenses

Personnel expenses

Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties

Bad debts and doubtful accounts

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Expenses by nature

Claims expense, net

Increase (decrease) in unexpired risk reserve
Commissions and brokerages expenses
Employee expenses

Advertising expenses

Other underwriting expenses

Premises and equipment expenses

Other expenses

Total expense by nature

Provident fund

ual Repor] 2022
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cannot be relied upon as being accurate.

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
113,184,155 156,781,055
29,810,024 53,309,185
278,336 240,037
4,594,051 3,991,480
72,012,174 103,758,941
219,878,740 318,080,698
(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
193,562,967 170,620,656
(1,003,136) 1,003,136
99,376,135 81,589,742
157,646,830 170,992,449
6,772,214 3,266,103
13,876,431 18,384,222
39,024,676 58,553,313
109,428,874 125,228,779
618,684,991 629,638,400

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance

with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the

fund monthly at the rate of 5 percent of basic salaries. The fund, which is managed by a fund

manager which has been approved by the Ministry of Finance. During the year 2022, the

Company contributed approximately Baht 3.6 million (2021: Baht 3.9 million) to the fund.
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32.

33.

33.1

Loss per share

DRAFT
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base plan and change and therefore its contents
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Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing loss for the year (excluding other

comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

Loss for the year (Baht)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end

of the year (shares)

Loss per share (Baht/share)

Related party transactions

Nature of relationship

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021
78,568,005 160,340,481
4,612,861 3,129,038
17.03 51.24

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The relationships between the Company and its related parties are summarised below.

Name of related parties

Nature of relationship

Bolttech Digital Solutions Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Parent company

FWD Life Insurance Plc.

Bolttech Management Co., Ltd.

Bolttech Life Insurance Broker (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Bolttech Insurance Broker (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Valdimir Pte., Ltd.

Bolttech Device Protection Capital (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Bolttech Device Protection (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Bolttech Device Protection (Malaysia) Co., Ltd.
Bolttech (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Bolttech Management (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Bolttech Holdings (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group
Having shareholders who are in the same group

Having shareholders who are in the same group
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33.2 Significant related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties,
which have been concluded on commercial terms and agreed upon in the ordinary course

of business between the Company and those companies.

(Unit: Million Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

2022 2021 Pricing policy
Transactions with related companies
Revenue
Premiums written (¥ 139.1 50.0 According to terms of
underwriting agreements
Service fee recharge 25.0 - At normal commercial rate
Expenses
Claim expense 0.5 0.5 According to terms of
underwriting agreements
Commission and brokerage expense 6.0 1.2 At normal commercial rate
Royalty fee 29 21 At normal commercial rate
Life insurance expense 29 1.7 According to life insurance
contract
Service fee 4.7 1.0 At normal commercial rate

() Premium written from non-life insurance brokers.

33.3 Outstanding balances

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of significant accounts between the

Company and those related companies are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

2022 2021
Premium receivables
Related company - FWD Life Insurance Plc. 0.7 0.5
Related company - Bolttech Insurance Broker (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 0.1 23
Related company - Bolttech Device Protection (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 0.4 3.2
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33.4

34.

35.

351

35.2

35.3

Directors and management’s benefit

DRAFT
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During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had employee benefit

expenses payable to its directors and management as below.

(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits 42,622,696 23,285,084
Post-employment benefits 381,487 1,882,899
Share-based payment benefits 8,657,799 16,905,028
Total 51,661,982 42,073,011
Contribution to the General Insurance Fund
(Unit: Baht)
2022 2021
Accumulated contribution at the beginning of the year 24,812,441 23,578,869
Contribution during the year 1,649,338 1,233,572
26,461,779 24,812,441

Accumulated contribution at the end of the year

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has no future minimum lease and service payments
required under these short-term lease and leases of low-value assets (31 December 2021:
Baht 0.02 million).

Bank guarantees

As at 31 December 2022, there were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 0.11 million
(2021: Bath 0.02 million) issued by bank on behalf of the Company in respect of certain

performance bonds as required in the normal course of business.
Litigation

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has been sued as insurer, with the amounts claim,
related interest and litigation costs together for amounting to approximately Baht 18.9 million
(2021: Baht 11.1 million). The cases are not yet finalised, but the Company has set aside
reserves for its contingent losses amounting to approximately Baht 2.5 million (2021: Baht
0.7 million).
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36.1 Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk is the risk that the frequency, severity and timing of losses may deviate
from the assumptions used in the determination of premium rates, the calculation of

insurance reserves and underwriting.

The Company has insurance risk management guidelines, the objective of which are to
support the achievement of the Company’s business goals, and these are divided based on
the type of risk to ensure clear coverage of the management process and consistency with

the strategy of the Company, as follows:
1. Product development and pricing risk
2. Underwriting risk

3. Claims management risk

The Company has developed tools to assess risk based on the adequacy of the statistical

data and actuarial assumptions for the calculation of risk indicators, as follows.

1. The Company manages product development and product pricing risk by evaluating the
ratio of claims and operating expenses to ensure coverage of the core activities of

product design and development and the setting of premium rates.

2. The Company manages underwriting risk by assessing the maximum potential loss that
could be incurred by the Company as a result of damage caused by catastrophe,

consider the related statistical data both inside and outside for estimate risk.

3. The Company manages claims management risk by assessing the risks related to the
adequacy of claims reserves. The loss reserve calculation is estimated based on a
confidence level at the 80" - 90" percentile, to ensure the obligations recognised by the

Company are appropriate.
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The result of these risk assessments is monitored

related departments, for acknowledgement or for a
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implemented in a timely manner, taking into consideration the value and benefit to the

Company.

Insurance contract liabilities segregated by insurance type as follows:

Fire

Marine

Motor

Personal accident

Miscellaneous

Total

Fire

Marine

Motor

Personal accident

Miscellaneous

Total

31 December 2022

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2021

Gross Outward Gross Outward
premium premium premium premium
reserves reserves Net reserves reserves Net
7.6 (2.3) 5.3 8.0 (1.9) 6.1
0.2 (0.2) - 0.3 (0.2) 0.1
51.4 (0.1) 51.3 68.5 - 68.5
82.4 (31.5) 50.9 72.4 (27.8) 44.6
79.3 (47.7) 31.6 77.4 (37.5) 39.9
220.9 (81.8) 139.1 226.6 (67.4) 159.2
(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross Outward Gross Outward
claim claim claim claim
reserves reserves Net reserves reserves Net
0.5 (0.1) 0.4 0.4 - 0.4
38.8 (1.6) 37.2 54.0 (1.1) 52.9
22.8 (7.4) 15.4 29.3 (13.3) 16.0
84.0 (44.9) 39.1 71.8 (44.3) 27.5
146.1 (54.0) 92.1 155.5 (58.7) 96.8

The sensitivity test is the risk analysis of insurance contract liabilities that maybe increased

or decreased as a result of changes in assumptions used in calculation, which may impact

on both gross and net loss reserves. The risks may be caused by the frequency of loss,

value of loss and claims, or loss adjustment expenses that are not as expected.
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31 December 2022

(Unit: Million Baht)

Profit before

income tax Changes in
expenses equity
Assumption Change in gross Change in net increase increase
change insurance liabilities  insurance liabilities (decrease) (decrease)
+10% 3.3 2.7 (2.7) (2.7)
-10% (3.3) (2.7) 2.7 2.7
+1% 0.2 0.1 (0.1) (0.1)
-1% (0.2) (0.1) 0.1 0.1
(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2021
Profit before
income tax Changes in
expenses equity
Assumption Change in gross Change in net increase increase
change insurance liabilities  insurance liabilities (decrease) (decrease)
+10% 3.8 3.1 (3.1) (3.1)
-10% (3.8) (3.1) 3.1 3.1
+1% 0.1 0.1 (0.1) (0.1)
-1% (0.1) (0.1) 0.1 0.1

36.2 Risk management policy

The Company’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents,

premium receivables,

investments,

reinsurance asset and reinsurance receivables.

The financial risk associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.
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(a)

Credit risk base plan and change and therefore its contents
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Credit risk is the risk that the Company may suffer a financial loss as a result of a

counterparty’s inability to comply with the terms of a financial instrument. The

Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to premium receivables,

investments, reinsurance assets and reinsurance receivables. The Company’s

maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the book value less allowance for

doubtful account as presented in the statement of financial position. The Company

separates the credit risk as follows:

1. Credit risk for insurance

1.1.

1.2.

Credit risk for reinsurance: The Company attaches importance to the
dispersal of insurance risk. In transferring risk to reinsurers, the Company
therefore takes into account the financial strength of reinsurers and their
ability to meet their obligations when due, and reinsurance is to be made
with domestic reinsurers with a capital adequacy ratio of at least 200%
(Risk Grade 3) and with overseas reinsurers with credit ratings of at least
A-.

Credit risk from premium receivable: The Company maintains the
proportion of premium receivable at an appropriate level, in accordance
with the guidelines of the OIC and submits regular risk status reports to the

management to inform and facilitate action by the related departments.

Credit risk from investment assets

The Company diversifies its investment in order to spread risk across a range of

assets, in accordance with the investment strategy and investment policy. In the

case of diversifying investment in debt securities, significant consideration is

given to the credit rating of the bond or the issuer and the Company therefore

has a policy to invest in debt instruments with credit ratings of not less than BBB.

For any investments not meeting the criteria under the investment strategy

approved by the Board of Directors but at investment level under the framework

of the OIC, it must be pre-approved by the Investment Committee before entering

into the transaction.
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in the next 12 months are as follows:

Stage | - Financial assets with no significant increase in credit risk (12-month
ECL) are the financial assets with a credit rating of BBB (investment grade) or
higher, at low risk of non-compliance and of for which negative fluctuations in
long-term economic conditions will not reduce ability to cover contractual cash

flows.

Stage Il - Financial assets with a significant increase in credit risk (Lifetime ECL-
not credit impaired) are the financial assets that are downgraded to a credit risk

below the investment grade, BBB.

Stage Il - Financial assets with credit impairment (Lifetime ECL- credit impaired)
are the financial assets that are downgraded to the credit rating of lower than
BBB (below the investment grade), or with the interest or principal payments that
are over 1 day past due, or issuer having significant financial problems, or high
probability that the issuer of financial assets will be bankrupt or under financial

restructuring.

The table below shows the credit quality of financial assets exposed to credit risk.
The amounts presented for financial assets are gross carrying amount (before

deducting allowance for expected credit loss).
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Cash and cash equivalent

Investment grade
Total

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net book value

Debt instruments measured at

amortised cost

Investment grade
Total

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net book value

Accrued investment income

Investment grade
Total

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net book value

DRAFT
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cannot be relied upon as bt dtaousdad Baft)

31 December 2022

Financial

assets applied

Financial simplified
assets with approach to
Financial significant Financial calculated
assets with no increase in assets that are expected
significant credit risk credit-impaired credit loss
increase in (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL
credit risk - not credit - credit - simplified
(12-mth ECL) impaired) impaired) approach) Total
101,719 - - - 101,719
101,719 101,719
(29) - - - (29)
101,690 - - - 101,690
307,410 - - - 307,410
307,410 307,410
(86) - - - (86)
307,324 - - - 307,324
- - - 703 703
703 703
- - - 703 703
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Investment grade
Total

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net book value

Accrued investment income

Investment grade
Total

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net book value

This document is in draft form. It is subject to
review outstanding matters included share
base plan and change and therefore its contents

cannot be relied upon as béint:dtiousaad Bat)

31 December 2021

Financial

assets applied

Financial simplified
assets with approach to
Financial significant Financial calculated
assets with no increase in assets that are expected
significant credit risk credit-impaired credit loss
increase in (Lifetime ECL -  (Lifetime ECL -  (Lifetime ECL -
credit risk not credit credit simplified
(12-mth ECL) impaired) impaired) approach) Total
183,063 - - - 183,063
183,063 - - - 183,063
(81) - - - (81)
182,982 - - - 182,982
142,671 - - - 142,671
142,671 - - - 142,671
(69) - - - (69)
142,602 - - - 142,602
- - - 685 685
- - - 685 685
- - - 685 685
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The table below shows the movement in the all
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2022
Financial
assets applied
Financial simplified
assets with Financial approach to
Financial significant assets that calculated
assets with no increase in are credit- expected
significant credit risk impaired credit loss
increase in (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL
credit risk - not credit - credit - simplified
(12-mth ECL) impaired) impaired) approach) Total
Cash and cash equivalent
Beginning balance 81 - - - 81
Change due to remeasurement of allowance (52) - - - (52)
Ending balance 29 B B B 29
Debt instruments measured at
amortised cost
Beginning balance 69 - - - 69
Newly purchased or acquired financial asset 17 - - - 17
Disposal - - - - -
Ending balance 86 - - - 86
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Financial

assets applied

Financial simplified
assets with Financial approach to
Financial significant assets that calculated
assets with no increase in are credit- expected
significant credit risk impaired credit loss

increase in (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECL

credit risk - not credit - credit - simplified
(12-mth ECL) impaired) impaired) approach) Total
Cash and cash equivalent
Beginning balance 49 - - - 49
Change due to remeasurement of allowance 32 - - - 32
Ending balance 81 - - - 81
Debt instruments measured at
amortised cost
Beginning balance 248 - - - 248
Newly purchased or acquired financial asset 69 - - - 69
Disposal (248) - - - (248)
Ending balance 69 - - - 69
Accrued investment income
Beginning balance - - - 1 1
Disposal - - - (1) (1)

Ending balance - - - - -

3. Credit risk from loans

The Company has loans to employees through staff welfare scheme, with no

expect any risk from these loans.
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financial assets (excluding insurance assets) i

effect of mitigation through use of master netting and collateral arrangements.

(Unit: Baht)
31 December
2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalent 101,689,688 182,981,560
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 307,324,018 142,601,493
Accrued investment income 702,615 684,612
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 409,716,321 326,267,665

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
securities prices may affect the Company’s financial position. The Company had no
significant financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and market risk is

therefore confined only to interest rate risk and equity position risk.

The Company has policy to manage market risk by stipulated risk management
processes, risk appetites in terms of market price volatility, defining limit loss that the
Company can accept, performing tests of the sensitivity of the financial position to the
impact of the economic situation, together with regular monitoring and reporting, in

order to maintain risk at an appropriate level.
1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate

due to changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, significant assets and liabilities classified by
type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial
assets and financial liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified
based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity

date.
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Fixed interest rates

Maturity date or repricing date Non-
Within Floating interest Effective
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10.0 - - 91.7 - 101.7 0.025-0.35
Accrued investment income - - - - 0.7 0.7 -
Debt financial assets 276.1 31.2 - - - 307.3 0.20 - 4.50
Equity financial assets - - - - 83.2 83.2 -
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - - 33.2 - 33.2 2.20 - 6.65
Insurance assets
Premium receivables - - - - 47.7 47.7 -
Reinsurance assets - loss
reserves - - - - 54.0 54.0 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - 45.1 45.1 -
Insurance liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
- loss reserves and
outstanding claims - - - - 146.1 146.1 -
Reinsurance payables - - - - 103.1 103.1 -

(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 2021

Fixed interest rates

Maturity date or repricing date Non-
Within Floating interest Effective
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 95.0 - - 88.0 - 183.0 0.05-0.70
Accrued investment income - - - - 0.7 0.7 -
Debt financial assets 79.0 63.6 - - - 142.6 0.20 - 4.50
Equity financial assets - - - - 90.8 90.8 -
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - - 45.1 - 45.1 2.20-6.65
Insurance assets
Premium receivables - - - - 35.8 35.8 -
Reinsurance assets - loss
reserves - - - - 58.7 58.7 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - 91.9 91.9 -
Insurance liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
- loss reserves and
outstanding claims - - - - 155.5 155.5 -
Reinsurance payables - - - - 68.6 68.6 -
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Equity position risk is the risk that change in the market prices of equity securities

will result in fluctuations in revenues and in the value of financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has risk from its investments in

securities of which the price will change with reference to market conditions.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its assets or

procure sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting in the

occurrence of a financial loss.

The Company manages this risk by preparing budgets, cash flow projections and
financial status reports on a regular basis and requiring that cash or liquid assets
equivalent to cash be maintained at a level sufficient to settle claims and other

expenses.

The majority of the Company’s assets are cash and cash equivalents and investments
in securities for which there are liquid markets, while most premium receivables and
amounts due from reinsurers are not yet due or overdue not more than 1 year,

whereas most of amounts due to reinsurers are due within 1 year.
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31 December 2022

(Unit: Million Baht)

Less than Over
At call 1 year 1-5years 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 91.7 10.0 - - 101.7
Accrued investment

income - 0.7 - - 0.7
Debt financial assets - 2761 31.2 - 307.3
Equity financial assets - - - 83.2 83.2
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - 8.5 24.9 - 33.2
Asset under insurance

contract
Premium receivables - 47.7 - - 47.7
Reinsurance assets -

loss reserves - 54.0 - - 54.0
Reinsurance receivables - 451 - - 451
Liabilities under

insurance contract
Insurance contract

liabilities - loss reserves

and outstanding claims - 146.1 - - 146.1
Reinsurance payables - 103.1 - - 103.1
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31 December 2021

Less than Over
At call 1 year 1-5years 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 113.0 70.0 - - - 183.0
Accrued investment

income - 0.7 - - - 0.7
Debt financial assets - 79.0 63.6 - - 142.6
Equity financial assets - - - - 90.8 90.8
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - 11.5 29.0 4.6 - 45.1
Asset under insurance

contract
Premium receivables - 35.8 - - - 35.8
Reinsurance assets -

loss reserves - 58.7 - - - 58.7
Reinsurance receivables - 91.9 - - - 91.9
Liabilities under

insurance contract
Insurance contract

liabilities - loss reserves

and outstanding claims - 154.4 1.1 - - 155.5
Reinsurance payables - 68.6 - - - 68.6
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had the financial assets that were

measured at fair value, and had financial asset and financial liabilities that were measured

at cost but has to disclose fair value which presented based on fair value hierarchy as

follows:

Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity financial assets
Financial assets for which fair value are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Debt financial assets

Government securities

Saving lotteries

Deposits at financial institutions over 3 months
Financial liabilities which fair value are

disclosed

Lease liabilities

Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity financial assets
Financial assets for which fair value are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Debt financial assets

Government securities

Saving lotteries

Deposits at financial institutions over 3 months
Financial liabilities which fair value are

disclosed

Lease liabilities

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2022
Book value Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
83,176,342 68,651,828 - 14,524,514 83,176,342
101,689,688 101,689,688 - - 101,689,688
60,160,403 - 61,485,016 - 61,485,016
3,250,000 3,250,000 - - 3,250,000
244,000,000 244,000,000 - - 244,000,000
33,238,094 - - 33,238,094 33,238,094
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2021
Book value Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

90,827,777 79,006,501 - 11,821,276 90,827,777
182,981,560 182,981,560 - - 182,981,560
60,223,739 - 63,902,381 - 63,902,381
3,400,000 3,400,000 - - 3,400,000
79,047,115 79,047,115 - - 79,047,115
45,090,397 - - 45,090,397 45,090,397

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 presents

according to Note 4.22 to the financial statements.
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financial instrument. The Company establishes the fat

adopting the following methods:
(@) Financial assets - debt instruments

Debenture and bond are presented at fair value reference to market prices or

determined using the yield curve as announced by the Thai Bond Market Association.
(b) Financial assets - equity instruments

Equity instruments in the Stock Exchange of Thailand are presented at market value.
Non-listed equity instruments, fair value is determined using discounted future cash

flow model.
During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements of financial assets, categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, are as follow:

(Unit: Baht)

Equity instruments

Balance as of 1 January 2021 - stated at fair value 7,393,329
Net gain recognised in other comprehensive income 4,427,947
Balance as of 31 December 2021 - stated at fair value 11,821,276
Net gain recognised in other comprehensive income 2,703,238
Balance as of 31 December 2022 - stated at fair value 14,524,514

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that it
presences the ability to continue its business as a going concern and to maintain risk-based

capital in accordance with Declaration of the OIC.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 20 April 2023.
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